
 
 

GRAND VALLEY  
METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Thursday November 4, 2010 ● 8:30 a.m. 
 

**WYOMING CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS** 
1155 28TH St. SW, Wyoming. MI 49509   

 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order by Chair 
 

2. Public Comment 
 
3. Approval of Minutes dated October 7, 2010 

 
4. GVMC Strategic Initiatives – Implementation Update 
 
5. Legislative Advocacy – Report of the Legislative Committee 
 

a. October 28 House Fiscal Agency Presentation on State Budget Policies 
(Presentation slides attached as a stand-alone file) 

b. Election 2010 Debrief and Look-Ahead to 96th Michigan Legislature 
c. November 30 “Lansing Lobby Day for Transportation Funding  

 
6. Transportation: Amendments to the FY 2011-2014 Transportation Improvement 

Program (TIP) 
 

7. Other items of business and comments from GVMC members 
 
8. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 



GRAND VALLEY METRO COUNCIL 
 

Board Meeting 
 

October 7, 2010 
 

8:30 a.m. 
 

Kent County Commission Chambers 
 

 

MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 8:35 a.m. by Vice Chairman Don Hilton   
 
Members Present: 
Alex Arends  Alpine Township 
Dick Bulkowski  Kent County 
Chris Burns   City of Cedar Springs 
Tom Butcher  Grand Valley State University 
Dan Carlton  Georgetown Township 
Daryl Delabbio  Kent County 
Mike DeVries  Grand Rapids Township 
Tom Fehsenfeld  At-Large Member  
Cindy Fox   Cascade Township 
Doyle Hayes  At-Large Member 
George Heartwell  City of Grand Rapids 
Don Hilton, Sr.  Gaines Township 
Denny Hoemke  Algoma Township 
Jim Holtrop   Ottawa County 
Jim LaPeer   Cannon Township 
Elias Lumpkins, Jr.  City of Grand Rapids 
George Meek  Plainfield Township 
Jim Miedema  Jamestown Township 
Cy Moore   Treasurer 
Milt Rohwer  City of Grand Rapids 
Rick Root   City of Kentwood 
Ken Snow   City of Greenville 
Al Vanderberg  Ottawa County 
Rob VerHeulen  City of Walker 
 
 
Members Absent: 
Dale Bergman  Sparta Township 
Jim Buck   City of Grandville  
Jerry Alkema  Allendale Township 
Sharon DeLange  Village of Sparta 
Brian Donovan  City of East Grand Rapids 
Jason Eppler  City of Ionia 
Brian Harrison  Caledonia Township  

GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 1



John Helmholdt  At-Large 
Pauline Luben  City of Hudsonville 
Mick McGraw  At-large Member 
Robert May   City of Hastings 
Audrey Nevins  Byron Township 
Sandi Frost Parrish  Kent County 
David Pasquale  City of Lowell 
Steven Patrick  City of Coopersville 
Jack Poll   City of Wyoming 
Chuck Porter  Courtland Township 
Toby VanEss  Tallmadge Township 
Phil Van Noord  Village of Middleville 
Bill VerHulst  City of Wyoming 
Roger Wills   City of Belding 
Chris Yonker  City of Wayland 
Michael Young  City of Rockford 
 
 
Others Present: 
Andy Bowman  Grand Valley Metro Council 
Leon Branderhorst  Grand Valley Metro Council 
Abed Itani   Grand Valley Metro Council 
Dennis Kent  MDOT 
Gayle McCrath  Grand Valley Metro Council 
Don Stypula  Grand Valley Metro Council 
Don Tubbs   City of Hastings 
Steve Warren  Kent County Road Commission 

 
 
2. Public Comment 

 
None 

 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
 

MOTION – To Approve the Minutes of the September GVMC Board Meeting.  MOVE – 
Heartwell.    SUPPORT – Meek.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
4. Jamestown Township 

 
MOTION – To Approve Jamestown Township Remaining a Member of the Grand Valley 
Metro Council.  MOVE – Vanderberg.  SUPPORT – Holtrop.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 

5. Strategic Initiative 
 

Don Stypula reported on the Strategic Initiatives. 

GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 2



GVMC FY 2011 Strategic Initiatives As Recommended by the Executive Committee 
 
1) Managing Emerging Issues: An on-going service program to help GVMC member counties 
and communities develop awareness and knowledge of and properly manage emerging public 
administration and public policy issues that affect county and municipal operations and service 
delivery. 

 
2) Encouraging Collaborative Service Sharing: Develop region-wide initiatives to encourage 
collaborative service and cost sharing models and assist sub-regional neighbors and the counties 
in identifying, analyzing and developing cost and service sharing agreements for the delivery of 
public services. 
 
3) Coordinating a Region-Wide Training Exchange for GVMC Members: 
Develop a region-wide initiative to share the costs of providing education and training programs 
on a wide-range of topics for elected officials, administrators and staff. 
 
4) Nurturing a Regional Economic Development Partnership: Galvanize and grow Metro 
Council’s existing partnerships with the area Chambers of Commerce, the Right Place, Inc., 
Lakeshore Advantage, the Ottawa County Economic Development Office, the Michigan 
Economic Development Corporation and other organizations to communicate a unified, public-
private voice on economic development issues and opportunities. 
 
5) Planning for Sustainable Communities: Encourage, promote and directly assist GVMC-
member communities in sustainable growth practices through updated master plans, capital 
improvement plans, and other development tools and regulations. This includes facilitation and 
direct involvement in regional and multi-jurisdictional planning efforts to encourage sustainable 
growth and infrastructure investment. 
 
6) Retooling GVMC’s Governance, Structure and Operations: Empanel a Task Force 
consisting of GVMC members to review and recommend changes to GVMC’s organizational 
structure and develop an operational model for Metro Council that improves efficiency and 
addresses members’ needs. 
 
Don Stypula reported this is an evolving document and will change over time.  We have an 
aggressive timetable to achieve the goals – June 30, 2011.  
 
Al Vanderberg stated now we need an implementation plan with times and metrics.  We need a 
timeline, plan and measurables sooner rather than later. 
 
Daryl Delabbio said this group (the Board) needs to be a catalyst to get things to change. 
 
Tom Fehsenfeld added we also need to be realistic with the goals and expectations and see how 
they align with the previous strategic plan to see what needs to be dropped.  Goals are great, but 
we need the resources to make things happen. 
 
Dick Bulkowski stated the third item under D could have universities and colleges added to it. 
 

GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 3



Rick Root asked how we get that constant pressure to keep this moving. 
 
Al Vanderberg said strategic planning should be an annual event, not something just on the 
shelf.  The Board should do it every year and the staff should implement and report on the 
quality.  The next step is the work of management.  Don and his staff should come back to the 
Executive Committee with a plan within the next month. 
 
Rick Root stated we have an expectation of taking these wide-ranging goals and dumping them 
on one person with limited resources.  Maybe we should take out the legislative component.  It 
is almost becoming unattainable.  Do we need to tighten the focus? 
 
Al Vanderberg said it is a mistake to let function drive form.  We need to wrap the resources 
around the goals.  
 
Jim LaPeer suggested taking someone already on staff and making them a project manager. 
 
Tom Butcher reported GVSU also has a strategic plan.  Everyone has to bring their work plan in 
alignment with the strategic plan.  I challenge all of you to consider this is our strategic plan, not 
just staff but that of every member and coordinate and collaborate to make it happen.  The 
members need to make this happen. 
 
Don Hilton added we are here for about one hour a month and we discuss what is on the agenda.  
An hour per month for this many governmental units will not suffice to make this happen.  
Members should communicate with Don Stypula, Jim Buck or Rick Root to engage what is not 
on the agenda.  We need to put pressure on everyone to realize they are an important part of 
this. 
 
George Heartwell stated we could put the strategic initiatives at the bottom of each agenda. 
 
MOTION – To Endorse the Strategic Initiatives, Incorporating the Wording to Include 
Universities and Colleges as Suggested.  MOVE – Heartwell.  SUPPORT – Root.  
MOTION CARRIED.   

 
 
 

6. Legislative Advocacy 
 

Rick Root reported the next Quarterly Luncheon will be Monday, October 11, with Bill 
Ballenger as the featured speaker.   
 
Don Stypula reported nothing much is expected to happen during the Lame Duck session, 
however transportation funding may move at the state level. 
 
 

7. Transportation Amendment 
 

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) is requesting an amendment to 

GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 4



GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 5

GVMC’s FY 2011-14 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The amendment for the FY 
2011 General Program Accounts (GPA) will ensure that the new TIP is consistent with the 
previous action the Metro Council has taken for the FY 2008-11 TIP. 

 
FY 2011 
FY  JN  Route   Location  Work Description    Total Cost Est. 
11  N/A  Various   Areawide  Trunkline Road CPM    GPA $6,600,000 
11  N/A  Various   Areawide  Trunkline Pre-Construction Phases   GPA $400,000 
11  N/A  Various   Areawide Trunkline Bridge CPM/CSM   GPA $300,000 
11  N/A  Various   Areawide  Trunkline Highway Safety   GPA $2,400,000 
11  N/A  Various   Areawide Trunkline Program Devlp/Scoping   GPA $400,000 

 
 

MOTION – To Approve the Amendment to GVMC’s FY 2011-14 TIP as Requested.  
MOVE – Vanderberg.   SUPPORT- Meek.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 

8. Adjournment – 9:40 
 

MOTION – To Adjourn.  MOVE – Fox.  SUPPORT – VerHeulen.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 



GVMC Board Packet #5c 
 
 
 

 

 
Transportation Lobby Day  

Tuesday, NOVEMBER 30, 2010 
 

 8:30 A.M.   Arrive at the Lansing Center 
 8:45 A.M.   Material Pick-Up & Briefing 
 9:45 A.M.   March to Capitol 
 10:00 A.M.  House Legislative Meetings  
 12:00 NOON  Senate Legislative Meetings 

 

THE TIME IS NOW!!!! 
    
We need YOU to join us for this Lobby Day.  PLEASE JOIN US IN LANSING TO 
DRIVE HOME OUR MESSAGE that NOW IS THE TIME to pass a REAL FUNDING 
SOLUTION for Michigan’s TRANSPORTATION roads and bridges!  We will be 
setting up coalition wide meetings with House and Senate members.  PLEASE 
RSVP YOUR ATTENDANCE! 

 
 



REGISTRATION FORM 
 

Name: _________________________________ E-mail: 

___________________________________________  

Agency: _____________________________________ Phone: 

_____________________________________  

Home address, city, zip:

 ___________________________________________________________________ 

***Please provide your full name, agency, contact number, e-mail address and home 
address to assist us in setting up legislative meetings.*** 
 
You may register by faxing this form to (517) 482-1253 or mail this form to the CRAM 
Office-Attn: Monica Ware 
CRAM- P.O. Box 12067, Lansing, MI 48901-2067.    
Please call (517) 482-1189, ext 17 or E-mail: mware@localroads.net with any questions.  
 

Please return your registration no later than November 10, 2010 
 

mailto:mware@localroads.net


  

 

GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ALGOMA TOWNSHIP � ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP � ALPINE TOWNSHIP � BYRON TOWNSHIP � CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP � CANNON TOWNSHIP �CASCADE TOWNSHIP � CEDAR SPRINGS � COOPERSVILLE  � COURTLAND 

TOWNSHIP � EAST GRAND RAPIDS � GAINES TOWNSHIP � GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP � GRAND RAPIDS � GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP � GRANDVILLE � GREENVILLE � HASTINGS � HUDSONVILLE � IONIA � JAMESTOWN 

TOWNSHIP � KENT COUNTY � KENTWOOD � MIDDLEVILLE � OTTAWA COUNTY � PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP � ROCKFORD � SPARTA � SPARTA TOWNSHIP � TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP � WALKER � WAYLAND � WYOMING 

40 PEARL ST., N.W.  �  SUITE 410  �  GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49503-3027  �  PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)  �  FAX 774-9292  �  WWW.GVMC.ORG 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

DATE: October 8, 2010 
 
TO:  Executive Committee 
 
FROM: Darrell T. Robinson, Transportation Planner 
 
RE:  FY2011 TIP Changes 
 

 
Due to several changes being requested by several jurisdictions to the yet to be 
approved FY2011-2014 TIP, staff is requesting approval of the following changes: 
 

FY2011 

● Delete Hall Street from Kalamazoo to Eastern – City of Grand Rapids. 
● Delete Eastern Avenue from 52nd to 60th (former ACC Project) – City of 

Kentwood. 
● Delete GVMC’s “Planning Studies” (Pavement Management System, Congestion 

Management System, GIS Maintenance).  
● Add a new project Fulton Street from the Grand River to Division. The cost 

breakdown is $260,085 Federal, $89,915 local and $350,000 total. This project 
will be pending public involvement, EJ and consultation. 

● Change the limits on Hall Street from Madison to Eastern to Madison to Union 
and reduce the cost. 

● Move 28th Street Kraft to I-96 ramps from FY2014 to FY2011 – KCRC. 
● The remaining STP Urban Federal funds; redistribute to all projects. This will 

increase the Federal percentage to 74.31%. 
● Add Burton Street at Conrail Railroad (BHT Federal fund source) Bridge grant – 

City of Grand Rapids. 
● Add Alger Street at C&O Railroad and Market Avenue at Conrail Bridge for 

guardrail upgrades (Safety Project Grant) – City of Grand Rapids. 
● Add 68th Avenue from Fillmore Street to M-45 (EDDF Funded) – OCRC. 
● Hope Network would like to add the attached capital project requests utilizing 

5310 funds (please see attached). 
● American Red Cross would also like to add the attached capital project requests 

utilizing 5310 funds (please see attached). 
● ITP The Rapid has several changes to the FY2011 – 2014 TIP. An updated list of 

projects is attached.  

 

stypulad
Typewritten Text
GVMC Board Packet #6



● The City of Lowell in conjunction with Lowell Charter Township, Vergennes 
Township and the Lowell Area Recreation Authority (LARA) was awarded 
Enhancement funding for a non-motorized trail at a total cost of $1,065,000. This 
project needs to be listed in the TIP to be funded (see attached). 

● Staff is recommending adding the (GVMC approved) FY2011 CMAQ program to 
the FY2011 – 2014 TIP. The FY2011 CMAQ program is in the final stages of 
approval at MDOT and is pending approval at FHWA. See the attached list.  

● MDOT requests several changes to the FY2011-2014 TIP (see attached). 
 

FY2012 

● Delete 17 Mile Road US-131 Ramps to West Street – KCRC. 
● Move East Paris Avenue from Cascade to Kentwood City Limit from FY2014 to 

FY2012 - KCRC. 
● Add 6th Street Bridge over the Grand River (MCS State fund source) to FY2012 – 

City of Grand Rapids. 
● Add 68th Street over Plaster Creek (BHT Federal fund source) Bridge grant – 

KCRC. 
 

FY2014 

● Add a total of $630,000 Federal (ACC) Division Avenue 54th to 60th project from 
the two projects that moved up in the TIP (see above changes) – City of 
Kentwood. There is still $396,479 Federal Advance Construction Conversion in 
FY2015. 

 
Attached for your information is the E-File for FY2011-2014. Projects affected by 
amendments are highlighted for your information. 
 
If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at (616) 776-7609. 









 

Interurban Transit Partnership 

300 Ellsworth Avenue SW     Grand Rapids, MI 49503-4005     616.456.7514  •  Fax 616.774.1195 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
September 16, 2010 
 
 
Mr. Darrell Robinson 
Grand Valley Metro Council 
678 Front Ave, N.W., Suite 200 
Grand Rapids MI  49504-5319 

 
 
Dear Darrell, 
 
In preparation of the FY 2011 Section 5307/5309/5339 grants The Rapid is requesting an 
amendment to the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for fiscal year 2011.   The 
Activity Line Items (ALI’s) listed reflect the changes all other ALI’s will remain the same.  
 
 
If you have any questions or require additional information please call me at 774-1183. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Janice Hoekstra 
Grants Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
The Rapid    

FY 2011 TIP Amendment    

September 16, 2010   

   Amendment  

Projects  Original Budget   Requested 

Section 5307   

Paratransit Replacement Vehicles (3) 456,000 163,508 

Paratransit Expansion Vehicles  228,000 0 

Replacement 40' Buses (10) 0 4,351,770 

Service Vehicles 90,000 0 

Associated Capital Maintenance Items 1,061,080 586,885 

Preventive Maintenance 1,000,000 1,625,000 

Bus Tire Lease 120,000 225,000 

A&E 500,000 50,000 

Shop Equipment  39,564 33,933 

Office Furniture/Equipment  15,000 12,500 

Facility Equipment 350,000 0 

Computer Hardware 34,930 161,125 

Computer Software  34,930 312,500 

Misc. Support Equipment  55,000 0 

ADA Vehicle Equipment 103,000 150,000 

Wealthy Facility Renovation 4,329,180 938,120 

Rehab Admin Maint Facility  467,000 181,361 

Storage  25,000 0 

ITS 800,000 1,250 

Radio Equipment  5,000 0 

Misc. Contingency 106,000 62,500 

Project Admin 80,000 100,000 

Capital Cost of Contracting  600,000 No Change Requested  

Passenger Shelters  100,000 62,500 

Bus Stop Signs 5,000 12,500 

Information Displays 800,000 6,250 

Security Surveillance 238,000 88,382 

Planning  523,350 793,150 

     

Section 5309   

DABRT 19,303,000 No Change Requested 

Expansion 40' Buses 0 768,900 

Wealthy Operation Center 0 862,632 

Terminal 0 750,000 

Amtrak Rail Relocation 0 750,000 

ITS 0 2,800,000 

   

   

Section 5339   

Streetcar Study 0 3,125,000 

 







FY2011 CMAQ Program

FY2011 CMAQ Local

PROJECT LIMITS PROJECT SCOPE JURISDICTION LENGTH FED/STATE NON-FED TOTAL

Ozone Action! Program Areawide Ozone Action Awareness Program GVMC 0.00 $80,000 $20,000 $100,000
Westrain Areawide Marketing for the GR/Chicago Amtrak train GVMC 0.00 $10,000 $2,500 $12,500
Non-motorized Trail/Forest Hill Ave. NCL to I-96 Construct a non-motorized trail on E. side of Forest Hill Kentwood 1.50 $168,600 $356,400 $525,000
Ozone Action Days Areawide Free Fare On Ozone Action Days ITP 0.00 $96,000 $24,000 $120,000
Rideshare Areawide Commuting Alternatives ITP 0.00 $144,703 $0 $144,703
VanPool Expansion Vans Areawide Purchase of 8 Expansion Vans ITP 0.00 $178,960 $44,740 $223,700
Replacement Bus (1) Line Haul Bus 40' Low Floor Buses ITP 0.00 $302,400 $75,600 $378,000
Signal Optimization (Phase 6) Areawide Signal optimization at up to 120 locations on Federal Aid Roads (Phase 6) Grand Rapids 0.00 $240,000 $60,000 $300,000
HD Widearea Surveillance for the ITS SystemCBD and Vicinity Upgrade existing and install new cameras on tall struct. to provide overview of entire area.Grand Rapids 0.00 $200,000 $50,000 $250,000
Michigan Street At College Intersection Improvements Grand Rapids 0.10 $920,000 $230,000 $1,150,000
Total Programmed $2,340,663

Target $2,340,671

Difference $8

FY2011 CMAQ MDOT

I-96 At Cascade WB on ramp, extend ramp MDOT 0.20 $720,000 $180,000 $900,000
M-11 (Wilson Ave.) Hall St.- Riverbend Dr. Vic. Add/Extend Center LT Lane MDOT 0.40 $468,000 $117,000 $585,000
M-50 (Alden Nash Ave.)  @ I-96 Vic Expand Carpool Parking Lot MDOT 0.00 $261,000 $65,000 $327,000
US-131 44th to 36th Add NB W/M lane between ramps MDOT 0.80 $720,000 $180,000 $900,000
Total Programmed $2,169,000

Target $2,340,671

Difference $171,671

ITS Set-Aside 

MDOT WM TMC Regionwide Control Room Operations MDOT 0.00 $450,000 $450,000
MDOT ITS Regionwide ITS Device Operation and Maintenance MDOT 0.00 $587,500 $587,500
Total $1,037,500 $0 $1,037,500

ITS Set-Aside (Illustrative)

Regional Signal System TMS Operations Operational Costs Grand Rapids 0.00 $324,000 $81,000 $405,000
Traffic Signal Communications and Syncronization (Phase 2)Corridor TBA Transfer corridor to IP communications and install GPS clocks at up to 60 locations Grand Rapids 0.00 $160,000 $40,000 $200,000
Traffic Signal System Communications Areawide Com. Upgrade Phase II - Bridgewiev/Belknap to Remotes, Remote to Remote Links Grand Rapids 0.00 $280,000 $70,000 $350,000
Total $764,000 $191,000 $955,000



  

 

 

 
JENNIFER M. GRANHOLM 

GOVERNOR 

STATE  OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

GRAND REGION OFFICE 
1420 FRONT AVENUE NW 

GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504 
PHONE: 616-451-3091  FAX: 616-451-0707 

 

October 21, 2010  

 
KIRK STEUDLE 

   DIRECTOR 

 

1420 FRONT AVENUE, NW  GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN  49504-3221 
www.michigan.gov • 616/451-3091 

TS-GRO (03/06) 

TO: Abed Itani, Transportation Director 
 Grand Valley Metro Council 
 
FROM: Dennis Kent, Region Transportation Planner 
 MDOT/Grand Region 
 
SUBJECT: FY 2011-14 TIP Amendment #1 / FY 2011 MDOT Projects-Revised 
 
MDOT is requesting the following amendments/modifications to the GVMC FY 2011-14 MPO 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), for FY 2011 MDOT projects: 
 
FY 2011 – Trunkline Project Additions/Modifications  
 
JN Route Location Work Description  Total Cost Est. 

102914 US-131 @ Post Rd. Resurface Carpool Lot $41,000* 

109762 I-96 
Cascade Rd WB 
On-Ramp 

Ramp Reconstruction $300,000+ 

109765 M-11 
@ Ivanrest & 
Byron Ctr. Ave’s. 

Intersection Reconstruction $1,251,000+ 

102951 Various Areawide Roadside Facility Signing Upgrade $88,000 
87397 US-131 I-196 to Ann St. Replace Freeway Lighting $1,000,000 

106262 M-45 
@ Campus Dr. 
GVSU / Allendale 

Add Turning Lanes (Michigan Institutional 
Roads Program) 

$435,000 

106272 US-131 Under 100th St. Bridge Deck and Substructure Repairs $410,000 

106669 I-96 
Under 
Whitneyville Rd. 

Bridge – Deep Overlay, Paint, & Substructure 
Repairs 

$850,000 

87156 US-131 Under 36th St. Bridge Replacement $4,000,000 * 

87155 US-131 
Under Franklin, 
Burton, Hall Sts. 

Full and Partial Deck Replacements $5,600,000 * 

* In 2011-14 TIP, cost change only. 
+ In 2011-14 TIP, changed year only 
 
FY 2011 – CMAQ Projects 
 
JN Route Location Work Description  Total Cost Est. 

109666 I-96 @ Cascade Rd. Extend WB on-ramp $900,000 

111078 M-11 
Hall St. to 
Riverbend Dr. 
Vic. 

Add/Extend Center LT lane $585,000 

111261 M-50 @ I-96 Vic. Expand Carpool Parking Lot $327,000 
110085 US-131 44th  St. to 36th St. Add NB weave/merge lane between ramps $900,000 
111293 MDOT 

WM TMC 
Regionwide  ITS Control Room Operations $450,000  

111292 MDOT 
ITS 

Regionwide ITS Device Operation and Maintenance $587,500 



P.2 / GVMC 
 
 
 
Please amend or modify the GVMC FY 2011-14 MPO TIP to include these changes.  Due to 
ongoing FY 2011 statewide budget issues, some modifications to this project list may be 
required at the MPO committee meetings to remain financially constrained.  Feel free to contact 
me at 616/451-3091 if you have any questions. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 

 
 

cc GVMC MPO Committees  D. Robinson, GVMC  
 V. Weerstra, MDOT   S. Cornell-Howe, GVMC  
 E. Kind, MDOT    
  



Required Fields

Fiscal 

Year

Respon-

sible 

Agency Project Name Limits Length Project Description

Advance 

Construct

Federal 

Cost 

($1000s)

Federal 

Fund 

Source

State 

Cost 

($1000s)

State 

Fund 

Source

Local 

Cost 

($1000s)

Local 

Fund 

Source

Total 

Phase 

Cost 

($1000s)

MDOT 

Job No.

MPO/ 

Rural 

Action 

Date

Air 

Quality Comments

Total 

Project 

Cost 

($1000s)

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Hall Street

From Kalamazoo 

Avenue to Eastern Ave, 

Grand Rapids

0.206 Rotomill/resurface 134 STU 56 CITY 190 106404 08/05/10 Exempt
1511 Certification 

4/13/09. 45/55
293

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Plymouth 

Avenue

Burton Street to Boston 

Street
0.5 Reconstruction 999 STU 421 CITY 1,420 104927 08/05/10 Exempt 44/56 2,249

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Lafayette 

Avenue

Wealthy Street to State 

Street
0.33 Reconstruction 655 STU 275 CITY 930 104928 08/05/10 Exempt 33/67 1,955

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids Breton Avenue 28th to Burton 1.00
Resurface 623 STU 262 CITY 885 08/05/10 Exempt 54/46 1,148

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids Cherry Street Market to Grandville 0.12
Resurface 70 STU 30 CITY 100 08/05/10 Exempt 54/46 130

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids College Avenue Fountain to Fulton 0.16
Resurface 99 STU 41 CITY 140 08/05/10 Exempt 53/47 184

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids Hall Street Madison to Eastern 0.50
Resurface 236 STU 99 CITY 335 08/05/10 Exempt 40/60 686

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids Madison Avenue Wealthy to Cherry 0.20
Resurface 162 STU 68 CITY 230 08/05/10 Exempt 54/46 297

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids Monroe Avenue Ottawa to Leonard 0.25
Resurface 102 STU 43 CITY 145 08/05/10 Exempt 54/46 187

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids Coit Avenue

Kendalwood to North 

Park St. 0.17
Rotomill/resurface 77 STU 33 CITY 110 08/05/10 Exempt 20/80 392

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

1st Street Lane to Stocking 0.234 Rotomill/Resurface 70 STU 30 CITY 100 104918 08/05/10 Exempt 54/46 130

2011

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Market Avenue 

SW

Alger Street and 

Market Avenue
Guardrail upgrades 38 STH 9 CITY 47 108825 08/05/10 Exempt Add 10 52

2011
City of 

Kentwood
Eastern Avenue

52nd Street to 60th 

Street
1.00 Mill and resurface ACC 455 STU 455 100864 08/05/10 Exempt AC FY2008 455

2011

City of 

Kentwood
Forest Hill 

Avenue I-96 to Burton Street 0.54

Reconstruct and add turn 

lanes and curb and gutter
AC 1,300 CITY 1,300 08/05/10 Exempt ACC FY2013. 7.5 1,398

2011

City of 

Kentwood
Forest Hill 

Avenue I-96 to North City Limit 0.92

Reconstruct and add turn 

lanes and curb and gutter
AC 2,100 CITY 2,100 08/05/10 Exempt

ACC FY2013 and 

FY2014. 7.5
2,258

2011
City of 

Walker
Bristol Avenue

Four Mile south to 

Three Mile
0.98 Resurface 246 STU 104 CNTY 350 104929 08/05/10 Exempt Add 20 420

2011 GVMC
Planning 

Studies

Pavement Management 

Sys

Pavement Management 

Sys
140 STU 35 OLF 175 08/05/10 Exempt 175

2011 GVMC
Planning 

Studies

Congestion 

Management Sys

Congestion Management 

Sys
80 STU 20 OLF 100 08/05/10 Exempt 100

2011 GVMC
Planning 

Studies
GIS Maintenance GIS Maintenance 30 STU 8 OLF 38 08/05/10 Exempt 38

FY 2011 - 2014 Draft - GVMC Grand Rapids
8/5/10



Required Fields

Fiscal 

Year

Respon-

sible 

Agency Project Name Limits Length Project Description

Advance 

Construct

Federal 

Cost 

($1000s)

Federal 

Fund 

Source

State 

Cost 

($1000s)

State 

Fund 

Source

Local 

Cost 

($1000s)

Local 

Fund 

Source

Total 

Phase 

Cost 

($1000s)

MDOT 

Job No.

MPO/ 

Rural 

Action 

Date

Air 

Quality Comments

Total 

Project 

Cost 

($1000s)

FY 2011 - 2014 Draft - GVMC Grand Rapids
8/5/10

2011

Hope 

Network, 

Inc.

Hope Network
Kent County - Hope 

Network
Purchase high top van 32 ST 8 TRAL 40 104932 08/05/10 Exempt Rural 65

2011 ITP
Replacement 

Vehicles
Regionwide Paratransit Vehicles (6) 392 5307 98 CTF 491 08/05/10 Exempt 491

2011 ITP Expand Vehicles Regionwide Paratransit Vehicles (3) 131 5307 33 CTF 164 08/05/10 Exempt 164

2011 ITP Cap. Mainten. Regionwide
Associated Capital 

Maintenance Items
570 5307 142 CTF 712 08/05/10 Exempt 712

2011 ITP Prev. Mainten. Regionwide Preventive Maintenance 1,300 5307 325 CTF 1,625 08/05/10 Exempt 1,625

2011 ITP Bus Tire Lease Regionwide Bus Tire Lease 180 5307 45 CTF 225 08/05/10 Exempt 225

2011 ITP A & E Regionwide
Architecture and 

Engineering
40 5307 10 CTF 50 08/05/10 Exempt 50

2011 ITP Shop Equip. Regionwide Shop Equipment 242 5307 60 CTF 302 08/05/10 Exempt 302

2011 ITP Office Fur/Equip Regionwide
Office 

Furniture/Equipment
10 5307 3 CTF 13 08/05/10 Exempt 13

2011 ITP Fac. Equip. Regionwide Facility Equipment 280 5307 70 CTF 350 08/05/10 Exempt 350

2011 ITP
Comp. 

Hardware
Regionwide Computer Hardware 129 5307 32 CTF 161 08/05/10 Exempt 161

2011 ITP Comp. Software Regionwide Computer Software 250 5307 63 CTF 313 08/05/10 Exempt 313

2011 ITP Fac. Renovat. Regionwide Facility Renovation 690 5307 173 CTF 863 08/05/10 Exempt 863

2011 ITP
Rehab 

Adm/Main
Regionwide

Rehabilitation Admin/Main 

Facility
145 5307 36 CTF 181 08/05/10 Exempt 181

2011 ITP ITS Regionwide
Intelligent Transportation 

Sys.
1 5307 0 CTF 1 08/05/10 Exempt 1

2011 ITP Contingency Regionwide
Miscellaneous 

Contingencies
50 5307 13 CTF 63 08/05/10 Exempt 63

2011 ITP Project Admin. Regionwide Project Administration 80 5307 20 CTF 100 08/05/10 Exempt 100

2011 ITP Contract Regionwide
Capital Costs of 

Contracting
480 5307 120 CTF 600 08/05/10 Exempt 600

2011 ITP Pass. Shelters Regionwide Passenger Shelters 50 5307 13 CTF 63 08/05/10 Exempt 63

2011 ITP Signs Regionwide Bus Stop Signs 10 5307 3 CTF 13 08/05/10 Exempt 13

2011 ITP Displays Regionwide Information Displays 5 5307 1 CTF 6 08/05/10 Exempt 6

2011 ITP Security Equip. Regionwide
Surveillance/Security 

Equipment
88 5307 22 CTF 110 08/05/10 Exempt 110

2011 ITP Planning Regionwide Planning Funds 514 5307 128 CTF 642 08/05/10 Exempt 642

2011 ITP

Division Avenue 

Bus Rapid 

Transit project

Transit Terminal to 

60th Street
10.00

New Bus Rapid Transit 

route
15,442 5309 3,861 CTF 19,303 08/05/10 Exempt 19,303

2011 ITP

Replacement 

Vehicles Regionwide Replace Buses (10)
3,481 5307 870 CTF 4,352 08/05/10 Exempt 4,352

2011
ITP Buses Regionwide Expansion 40' Buses 615 5309 154 CTF 769 08/05/10 Exempt 769



Required Fields

Fiscal 

Year

Respon-

sible 

Agency Project Name Limits Length Project Description

Advance 

Construct

Federal 

Cost 

($1000s)

Federal 

Fund 

Source

State 

Cost 

($1000s)

State 

Fund 

Source

Local 

Cost 

($1000s)

Local 

Fund 

Source

Total 

Phase 

Cost 

($1000s)

MDOT 

Job No.

MPO/ 

Rural 

Action 

Date

Air 

Quality Comments

Total 

Project 

Cost 

($1000s)

FY 2011 - 2014 Draft - GVMC Grand Rapids
8/5/10

2011 ITP

Wealthy 

Operation 

Center Regionwide

Wealthy Operation Center 

expansion
690 5309 173 CTF 863 08/05/10 Exempt 863

2011 ITP Terminal Regionwide Terminal 600 5309 150 CTF 750 08/05/10 Exempt 750

2011 ITP

Amtrak Rail 

Relocation Regionwide Amtrak Rail Relocation
600 5309 150 CTF 750 08/05/10 Exempt 750

2011 ITP ITS Regionwide

Intelligent Transportation 

Sys.
2,240 5309 560 CTF 2,800 08/05/10 Exempt 2,800

2011 ITP Streetcar Study Regionwide Streetcar Study
100 5339 25 CTF 125 08/05/10 Exempt 125

2011 KCRC Ada Drive
Fox Hollow to 

Thornapple River Dr.
1.31 Resurface 230 STU 97 CNTY 328 08/05/10 Exempt Add 10 360

2011 KCRC
Forest Hill 

Avenue

Cascade Road to Ada 

Drive
0.25 Resurface 211 STU 89 CNTY 300 08/05/10 Exempt Add 10 330

2011 KCRC
Lincoln Lake 

Ave SE
4 various locations Signal moderization 272 STH 68 CNTY 340 108824 08/05/10 Exempt Add 10 374

2011 KCRC
Clyde Park 

Avenue
60th to 68th 1 Resurface 422 STU 178 CNTY 600 08/05/10 Exempt Add 10 660

2011 KCRC Sparta Avenue M-37 to 12 Mile Road 1.45 Resurface 704 STU 296 CNTY 1,000 08/05/10 Exempt 15 1,150

2011 KCRC
West River 

Drive
Rogue River to M-44 0.75

Reconstruct and widen 4 

to 5 lanes
1,184 STU 498 CNTY 1,683 08/05/10

Non-

exempt
15 1,935

2011 KCRC 10 Mile Road
West of Wolven to 

Childsdale
1.29

Reconstruct and Widen 2 

to 5 lanes
1,597 EDCF 403 CNTY 2,000 104898 08/05/10

Non-

exempt
15 2,300

2011 KCRC
Lincoln Lake 

Ave SE
McPherson to 3 Mile 2.00 Resurface 508 ST 127 CNTY 635 08/05/10 Exempt Add 10 699

2011 KCRC
Forest Hill 

Avenue

NCL (Kentwood) to 

Cascade
0.35

Reconstruct and widen 2 

to 3 lanes
479 EDCF 121 CNTY 600 08/05/10

Non-

exempt
Add 10 660

2011 MDOT M-37
at Peach Ridge Avenue 

NW Quadrant
Crack Sealing 8 ST 2 M 10 90168 08/05/10 Exempt 10

2011 MDOT M-6
at M-37 and 60th 

Street NE Quadrant
Crack Sealing 9 ST 2 M 12 102915 08/05/10 Exempt 12

2011 MDOT US-131
at Post Road NE 

Quadrant
Resurface 22 ST 5 M 27 102914 08/05/10 Exempt 27

2011 MDOT US-131
under Franklin, Burton 

and Hall Streets

Partial and Full Deck 

Replace
3,041 NH 590 M 84 CITY 3,715 87155 08/05/10 Exempt 4,148

2011 MDOT I-96 under M-50 Bridge Replacement 49 IM 5 M 55 106793 08/05/10 Exempt 4,327

2011 MDOT I-96 under M-50 Bridge Replacement 138 IM 15 M 153 106793 08/05/10 Exempt 4,327

2011 MDOT M-11
M-37 East to I-96 (Gap 

Patterson Ave)
2.335

Mill, Jnts, Rsrf; Conc 

Recon
41 NH 9 M 50 105714 08/05/10 Exempt 8,564

2011 MDOT
Highway Safety 

Trunkline GPA
Regionwide Highway Safety Trunkline 84 ST 9 M 93 08/05/10 Exempt

2011 OCRC 8th Avenue
Port Sheldon Street to 

44th Street
0.54

Reconstruct and add 

center turn lane
405 STU 170 CNTY 575 104933 08/05/10

Non-

exempt
60/40 675

2011 OCRC 12th Avenue
Port Sheldon Street to 

Baldwin Street
1.28 Resurface 253 STU 107 CNTY 360 104931 08/05/10 Exempt 68/32 375

2011 OCRC 24th Avenue
Byron Road to Ottogan 

Street
3.005 Resurface 362 STU 153 CNTY 515 104926 08/05/10 Exempt 46/54 788

2011 OCRC Taylor Street
96th Avenue to 72nd 

Avenue
3.1

Resurface to 12' lane 

width (24' total)
320 ST 655 CNTY 975 08/05/10 Exempt

Rural, Ottawa 

County. 33/67
975

2012

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Burton Street
Division Avenue to 

Eastern Avenue
0.95 Resurface 562 STU 268 CITY 830 08/05/10 Exempt 52/48 1,072



Required Fields

Fiscal 

Year

Respon-

sible 

Agency Project Name Limits Length Project Description

Advance 

Construct

Federal 

Cost 

($1000s)

Federal 

Fund 

Source

State 

Cost 

($1000s)

State 

Fund 

Source

Local 

Cost 

($1000s)

Local 

Fund 

Source

Total 

Phase 

Cost 

($1000s)

MDOT 

Job No.

MPO/ 

Rural 

Action 

Date

Air 

Quality Comments

Total 

Project 

Cost 

($1000s)

FY 2011 - 2014 Draft - GVMC Grand Rapids
8/5/10

2012

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Burton Street
Eastern Avenue to 

Plymouth Avenue
1.22 Resurface 727 STU 348 CITY 1,075 08/05/10 Exempt 40/60 1,797

2012

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Plainfield 

Avenue
3 Mile Road to I-96 0.6 Resurface 541 STU 259 CITY 800 08/05/10 Exempt 41/59 1,306

2012

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Plainfield 

Avenue

Leonard Street to Ann 

Street
0.85 Resurface 491 STU 234 CITY 725 08/05/10 Exempt 52/48 936

2012

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Burton Street 

SW

At Conrail Railroad, 

City of Grand Rapids
Bridge Rehab 2,269 BHT 425 M 142 CITY 2,836 105308 08/05/10 Exempt 2,836

2012
City of 

Grandville

Rivertown 

Pkwy.

Wilson Avenue to Canal 

Avenue
0.44 Resurface 406 STU 194 CITY 600 08/05/10 Exempt 62/38 660

2012
City of 

Wyoming
36th Street

Division Avenue to 

Eastern Avenue
1 Resurface 480 STU 230 CITY 710 08/05/10 Exempt Add 40 994

2012
City of 

Wyoming
54th Street

Clyde Park Avenue to 

Division Avenue
1 Resurface 528 STU 252 CITY 780 08/05/10 Exempt Add 40 1,092

2012
City of 

Wyoming

Clyde Park 

Avenue

28th Street (M-11) to 

54th Street
3.25 Resurface 1,286 STU 614 CITY 1,900 08/05/10 Exempt Add 40 2,660

2012 GVMC
Planning 

Studies
Areawide 250 STU 63 OLF 313 08/05/10 Exempt 313

2012

Hope 

Network, 

Inc.

Cutaway small 

bus
Rural Area

Purchase small cutaway 

bus
54 ST 14 CTF 68 08/05/10 Exempt Rural 68

2012 ITP Paratransit Van Rural Area Purchase Paratransit Van 69 ST 17 CTF 86 08/05/10 Exempt Rural 86

2012 ITP

Paratransit 

Replacement 

(12) Regionwide

Paratransit Replacement 

(12) 
824 5307 206 CTF 1,030 08/05/10 Exempt 1,030

2012 ITP

Paratransit 

Vehicles 

Expansion Regionwide

Paratransit Vehicles 

Expansion
137 5307 34 CTF 172 08/05/10 Exempt 172

2012 ITP
Replacement 

40' Buses
Regionwide

Replacement 40' Buses 923 5307 231 CTF 1,154 08/05/10 Exempt 1,154

2012 ITP

Associated 

Capital 

Maintenance 

Items Regionwide

Associated Capital 

Maintenance Items
590 5307 148 CTF 738 08/05/10 Exempt 738

2012 ITP
Preventive 

Maintenance Regionwide
Preventive Maintenance 1,300 5307 325 CTF 1,625 08/05/10 Exempt 1,625

2012 ITP Bus Tire Lease Regionwide Bus Tire Lease 180 5307 45 CTF 225 08/05/10 Exempt 225

2012 ITP A&E
Regionwide

Architecture and 

Engineering
40 5307 10 CTF 50 08/05/10 Exempt 50

2012 ITP Shop Equipment
Regionwide

Shop Equipment 41 5307 10 CTF 51 08/05/10 Exempt 51

2012 ITP
Facility 

Equipment Regionwide
Facility Equipment 2,089 5307 522 CTF 2,611 08/05/10 Exempt 2,611

2012 ITP
Storage/Shelvin

g Units Regionwide
Storage/Shelving Units 12 5307 3 CTF 15 08/05/10 Exempt 15



Required Fields

Fiscal 

Year

Respon-

sible 

Agency Project Name Limits Length Project Description

Advance 

Construct

Federal 

Cost 

($1000s)

Federal 

Fund 

Source

State 

Cost 

($1000s)

State 

Fund 

Source

Local 

Cost 

($1000s)

Local 

Fund 

Source

Total 

Phase 

Cost 

($1000s)

MDOT 

Job No.

MPO/ 

Rural 

Action 

Date

Air 

Quality Comments

Total 

Project 

Cost 

($1000s)

FY 2011 - 2014 Draft - GVMC Grand Rapids
8/5/10

2012 ITP

Office 

Furniture/Equip

ment Regionwide

Office 

Furniture/Equipment
40 5307 10 CTF 50 08/05/10 Exempt 50

2012 ITP
Computer 

Hardware Regionwide
Computer Hardware 89 5307 22 CTF 112 08/05/10 Exempt 112

2012 ITP
Computer 

Software Regionwide
Computer Software 12 5307 3 CTF 15 08/05/10 Exempt 15

2012 ITP Service Vehicles
Regionwide

Service Vehicles 70 5307 18 CTF 88 08/05/10 Exempt 88

2012 ITP
Misc.. Support 

Equipment Regionwide
Miscellaneous support 

equipment
10 5307 3 CTF 13 08/05/10 Exempt 13

2012 ITP
Surveillance/Sec

urity Equipment 
Regionwide

Surveillance/Security 

Equipment 
93 5307 23 CTF 116 08/05/10 Exempt 116

2012 ITP
ADA Vehicle 

Equipment Regionwide
ADA Vehicle Equipment 154 5307 38 CTF 192 08/05/10 Exempt 192

2012 ITP

Rehab 

Adm/Maint 

Facility Regionwide

Rehabilitation Admin/Main 

Facility
208 5307 52 CTF 260 08/05/10 Exempt 260

2012 ITP
Passenger 

Shelters Regionwide
Passenger Shelters 150 5307 38 CTF 188 08/05/10 Exempt 188

2012 ITP

Intelligent 

Transportation 

System Regionwide

Intelligent Transportation 

System
1 5307 0 CTF 1 08/05/10 Exempt 1

2012 ITP
Micsc. 

Contingencies Regionwide
Micsc. Contingencies 50 5307 13 CTF 63 08/05/10 Exempt 63

2012 ITP
Project 

Administration Regionwide
Project Administration 80 5307 20 CTF 100 08/05/10 Exempt 100

2012 ITP
Capital Costs of 

Contracting Regionwide
Capital Costs of 

Contracting
520 5307 130 CTF 650 08/05/10 Exempt 650

2012 ITP Bus Stop Signs Regionwide Bus Stop Signs 10 5307 3 CTF 13 08/05/10 Exempt 13

2012 ITP
Information 

Displays Regionwide
Information Displays 5 5307 1 CTF 6 08/05/10 Exempt 6

2012 ITP Planning Funds
Regionwide

Planning Funds 514 5307 140 CTF 140 TRAL 795 08/05/10 Exempt 795

2012 ITP BRT Project 
Transit Terminal to 

60th Street
10 BRT Project 1,202 5309 301 CTF 1,503 08/05/10 Exempt 1,503

2012 ITP
Replacement 

40' Buses
Regionwide

Replacement 40' Buses 923 5309 231 CTF 1,154 08/05/10 Exempt 1,154

2012 KCRC 17 Mile Road
US-131 Ramps to West 

Street
0.6 Resurface 338 STU 162 CNTY 500 08/05/10 Exempt 10 550

2012 KCRC 84th Street
Clyde Park Avenue to 

Division Avenue
1 Resurface 677 STU 323 CNTY 1,000 08/05/10 Exempt 15 1,150

2012 KCRC
Clyde Park 

Avenue

76th Street to 84th 

Street
1 Resurface 338 STU 162 CNTY 500 08/05/10 Exempt 10 550

2012 KCRC Pettis Avenue
Knapp Street to Egypt 

Valley Avenue
2.38 Resurface 352 STU 168 CNTY 520 08/05/10 Exempt 10 572

2012 KCRC Cascade Road
Snow Avenue to 

Timpson Avenue
2 Resurface 434 ST 204 CNTY 638 08/05/10 Exempt Rural. 10 702

2012 KCRC
Forest Hill 

Avenue
Ada Drive to M-21 1

Reconstruct and widen 2 

to 3 lanes
1,280 EDCF 338 CNTY 1,618 08/05/10

Non-

exempt
15 1,861



Required Fields

Fiscal 

Year

Respon-

sible 

Agency Project Name Limits Length Project Description

Advance 

Construct

Federal 

Cost 

($1000s)

Federal 

Fund 

Source

State 

Cost 

($1000s)

State 

Fund 

Source

Local 

Cost 

($1000s)

Local 

Fund 

Source

Total 

Phase 

Cost 

($1000s)

MDOT 

Job No.

MPO/ 

Rural 

Action 

Date

Air 

Quality Comments

Total 

Project 

Cost 

($1000s)

FY 2011 - 2014 Draft - GVMC Grand Rapids
8/5/10

2012 KCRC
Clyde Park 

Avenue

0.10 Miles N. of 76th 

Street to 0.10 Miles S. 

of 68th Street

0.80
Reconstruct and widen 2 

to 3 lanes
832 EDCF 314 CNTY 1,146 104899 08/05/10

Non-

exempt

Former FY2011 STPU 

project. 15
400

2012 MDOT I-96 WB
Cascade Rd/I-96 WB 

On-Ramp
Ramp Reconstruction 270 IM 30 M 300 109762 08/05/10 Exempt 300

2012

City of 

Hudsonvill

e

32nd Avenue
M-121 to Highland 

Drive
1.23 Resurface 363 STU 174 CITY 537 08/05/10 Exempt 10 591

2012 MDOT M-6
at 8th Avenue NE 

Quadrant
Crack Sealing 10 ST 2 M 12 102918 08/05/10 Exempt 12

2012 OCRC Bauer Road
56th Avenue to 24th 

Avenue
4 Resurface 866 STU 414 CNTY 1,280 08/05/10 Exempt 54/46 1,600

2013

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Leonard Street
Ball Avenue to 

Plymouth Avenue
0.25 Resurface 150 STU 70 CITY 220 08/05/10 Exempt 52/48 288

2013

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Leonard Street
I-96 EB Ramps to I-96 

WB Ramps
0.2 Resurface 126 STU 59 CITY 185 08/05/10 Exempt 52/48 242

2013

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Leonard Street
I-96 WB Ramps to East 

Beltline
0.63 Resurface 388 STU 182 CITY 570 08/05/10 Exempt 52/48 746

2013

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Leonard Street
Maryland Avenue to I-

96 EB Ramps
0.2 Resurface 122 STU 58 CITY 180 08/05/10 Exempt 52/48 236

2013

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Leonard Street
Plymouth Avenue to 

Maryland Avenue
0.74 Resurface 456 STU 214 CITY 670 08/05/10 Exempt 52/48 877

2013

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Monroe Avenue
Knapp Street to North 

Park Street
1.69 Resurface 919 STU 431 CITY 1,350 08/05/10 Exempt 53/47 1,739

2013

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

ITS Areawide ITS Activities 110 EDCF 27 CITY 137 08/05/10 Exempt 52/48 211

2013

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

6th Street NW
Over Grand River, City 

of Grand Rapids
0.065 Preventative Maintenance 1,658 MCS 87 CITY 1,746 108884 08/05/10 Exempt 1,746

2013
City of 

Kentwood

Forest Hill 

Avenue
I-96 to Burton Street 0.55

Reconstruct and add turn 

lanes and curb and gutter
ACC 885 STU 885 08/05/10

Non-

exempt
AC FY2011. 7.5 951

2013
City of 

Kentwood

Forest Hill 

Avenue
I-96 to North City Limit 1.47

Reconstruct and add turn 

lanes and curb and gutter
ACC 968 STU 968 08/05/10

Non-

exempt
AC FY2011. 7.5 1,040

2013
City of 

Walker
Elmridge Drive

3 Mile Road to South 

City Limit
0.59 Reconstruct 748 STU 352 CITY 1,100 08/05/10 Exempt 20 1,320

2013
City of 

Wyoming
Division Avenue

28th Street (M-11) to 

36th Street
1 Resurface 578 STU 272 CITY 850 08/05/10 Exempt 40 1,190

2013
City of 

Wyoming
Division Avenue

44th Street to 54th 

Street
1.25 Resurface 714 STU 336 CITY 1,050 08/05/10 Exempt 40 1,470

2013
City of 

Wyoming
Ivanrest Avenue

North City Limit to 56th 

Street
1 Resurface 289 STU 136 CITY 425 08/05/10 Exempt 40 595

2013 GVMC
Planning 

Studies
Areawide 150 STU 38 OLF 188 08/05/10 Exempt 188



Required Fields

Fiscal 

Year

Respon-

sible 

Agency Project Name Limits Length Project Description

Advance 

Construct

Federal 

Cost 

($1000s)

Federal 

Fund 

Source

State 

Cost 

($1000s)

State 

Fund 

Source

Local 

Cost 

($1000s)

Local 

Fund 

Source

Total 

Phase 

Cost 

($1000s)

MDOT 

Job No.

MPO/ 

Rural 

Action 

Date

Air 

Quality Comments

Total 

Project 

Cost 

($1000s)

FY 2011 - 2014 Draft - GVMC Grand Rapids
8/5/10

2013 ITP
Paratransit 

Replacement
Regionwide

Paratransit Replacement 2,001 5307 500 CTF 2,501 08/05/10 Exempt 2,501

2013 ITP

Paratransit 

Vehicles 

Expansion Regionwide

Paratransit Vehicles 

Expansion
144 5307 36 CTF 180 08/05/10 Exempt 180

2013 ITP

Associated 

Capital 

Maintenance 

Items Regionwide

Associated Capital 

Maintenance Items
692 5307 173 CTF 865 08/05/10 Exempt 865

2013 ITP
Preventive 

Maintenance Regionwide
Preventive Maintenance 1,300 5307 325 CTF 1,625 08/05/10 Exempt 1,625

2013 ITP Bus Tire Lease Regionwide Bus Tire Lease 180 5307 45 CTF 225 08/05/10 Exempt 225

2013 ITP A&E
Regionwide

Architecture and 

Engineering
40 5307 10 CTF 50 08/05/10 Exempt 50

2013 ITP Shop Equipment
Regionwide

Shop Equipment 15 5307 4 CTF 19 08/05/10 Exempt 19

2013 ITP
Facility 

Equipment Regionwide
Facility Equipment 2,170 5307 543 CTF 2,713 08/05/10 Exempt 2,713

2013 ITP
Storage/Shelvin

g Units Regionwide
Storage/Shelving Units 15 5307 4 CTF 19 08/05/10 Exempt 19

2013 ITP

Office 

Furniture/Equip

ment Regionwide

Office 

Furniture/Equipment
40 5307 10 CTF 50 08/05/10 Exempt 50

2013 ITP
Computer 

Hardware Regionwide
Computer Hardware 58 5307 15 CTF 73 08/05/10 Exempt 73

2013 ITP
Computer 

Software Regionwide
Computer Software 40 5307 10 CTF 49 08/05/10 Exempt 49

2013 ITP Service Vehicles
Regionwide

Service Vehicles 70 5307 18 CTF 88 08/05/10 Exempt 88

2013 ITP
Misc.. Support 

Equipment Regionwide
Miscellaneous support 

equipment
44 5307 11 CTF 55 08/05/10 Exempt 55

2013 ITP
Surveillance/Sec

urity Equipment 
Regionwide

Surveillance/Security 

Equipment 
256 5307 64 CTF 320 08/05/10 Exempt 320

2013 ITP
ADA Vehicle 

Equipment Regionwide
ADA Vehicle Equipment 200 5307 50 CTF 250 08/05/10 Exempt 250

2013 ITP

Rehab 

Adm/Maint 

Facility Regionwide

Rehabilitation Admin/Main 

Facility
340 5307 85 CTF 425 08/05/10 Exempt 425

2013 ITP
Passenger 

Shelters Regionwide
Passenger Shelters 100 5307 25 CTF 125 08/05/10 Exempt 125

2013 ITP

Intelligent 

Transportation 

System Regionwide

Intelligent Transportation 

System
1 5307 0 CTF 1 08/05/10 Exempt 1

2013 ITP
Micsc. 

Contingencies Regionwide
Micsc. Contingencies 80 5307 20 CTF 100 08/05/10 Exempt 100

2013 ITP
Project 

Administration Regionwide
Project Administration 80 5307 20 CTF 100 08/05/10 Exempt 100

2013 ITP
Capital Costs of 

Contracting Regionwide
Capital Costs of 

Contracting
560 5307 140 CTF 700 08/05/10 Exempt 700

2013 ITP Bus Stop Signs Regionwide Bus Stop Signs 10 5307 3 CTF 13 08/05/10 Exempt 13



Required Fields

Fiscal 

Year

Respon-

sible 

Agency Project Name Limits Length Project Description

Advance 

Construct

Federal 

Cost 

($1000s)

Federal 

Fund 

Source

State 

Cost 

($1000s)

State 

Fund 

Source

Local 

Cost 

($1000s)

Local 

Fund 

Source

Total 

Phase 

Cost 

($1000s)

MDOT 

Job No.

MPO/ 

Rural 

Action 

Date

Air 

Quality Comments

Total 

Project 

Cost 

($1000s)

FY 2011 - 2014 Draft - GVMC Grand Rapids
8/5/10

2013 ITP
Information 

Displays Regionwide
Information Displays 10 5307 3 CTF 13 08/05/10 Exempt 13

2013 ITP Planning Funds
Regionwide

Planning Funds 520 5307 140 CTF 140 TRAL 800 08/05/10 Exempt 800

2013 ITP
Replacement 

Buses (5)
Regionwide

Replacement Buses (5) 1,616 5309 404 CTF 2,020 08/05/10 Exempt 2,020

2013 KCRC 76th Street
Sierrafield Drive to 

Burlingame Avenue
0.31 Resurface 88 STU 42 CNTY 130 08/05/10 Exempt 10 143

2013 KCRC Kraft Avenue
52nd Street to 60th 

Street
1

Resurface and 

Reconstruct
442 STU 208 CNTY 650 08/05/10 Exempt 10 715

2013 KCRC Cascade Road
Timpson Avenue to 

Segwun Avenue
2.25 Resurface 575 ST 144 CNTY 719 08/05/10 Exempt Rural. 10 791

2013 KCRC Northland Drive
Indian Lakes Road to 

South Street
1.2

Reconstruct and widen 2 

to 3 lanes
1,600 EDCF 400 CNTY 2,000 08/05/10

Non-

exempt
15 2,300

2013 KCRC Knapp Street At Grand River Drive 0.1
Add turn lanes at the 

intersection
440 EDCF 110 CNTY 550 08/05/10

Non-

exempt
10 605

2013 KCRC 68th Street SE
Over Plaster Creek, 

Kent County
Bridge Rehabilitation 432 BHT 81 M 27 CNTY 540 108885 08/05/10 Exempt 540

2013 MDOT M-11 At Clyde Park Avenue 0.105
Intersection 

Reconstruction
491 NH 95 M 14 CNTY 600 110036 08/05/10 Exempt 650

2013 MDOT M-11
At Ivanrest & Byron 

Center Avenues
0.143

Intersection 

Reconstruction
942 NH 196 M 13 CNTY 1,151 109765 08/05/10 Exempt 1,251

2013

City of 

Hudsonvill

e

Highland Drive
32nd Avenue to Creek 

View Drive
0.63 Resurface 93 STU 43 CITY 136 08/05/10 Exempt 10 150

2013 OCRC Baldwin Street
20th Avenue to 

Cottonwood Drive
2 Resurface 612 STU 288 CNTY 900 08/05/10 Exempt 64 950

2013 OCRC Leonard Street
24th Avenue to 

Kenowa Avenue
3.4 Resurface 740 STU 348 CNTY 1,088 08/05/10 Exempt 69 1,075

2014

City of 

East 

Grand 

Rapids

Lakeside Drive
Greenwood Drive to 

Wealthy Street
0.36 Reconstruct 382 STU 164 CITY 545 08/05/10 Exempt 50 767

2014

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Ann Street
Alpine Avenue to 

Voorheis Avenue
0.1 Rotomill/Resurface 53 STU 23 CITY 75 08/05/10 Exempt 53/47 100

2014

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Buchanan 

Avenue

Alger Street to Burton 

Street
0.49 Rotomill/Resurface 219 STU 94 CITY 313 08/05/10 Exempt 55/45 400

2014

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Carlton Avenue
Lake Drive to Fulton 

Street
0.35 Rotomill/Resurface 151 STU 65 CITY 216 08/05/10 Exempt 56/44 270

2014

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Lake Drive
East Beltline to East 

City Limit
0.25 Rotomill/Resurface 109 STU 47 CITY 156 08/05/10 Exempt 52/48 210

2014

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Lake Michigan 

Drive

Garfield Avenue to US-

131
1.06 Rotomill/Resurface 438 STU 188 CITY 625 08/05/10 Exempt 60/40 730

2014

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Richmond 

Street

Alpine Avenue to 

Scribner Avenue
0.58 Rotomill/Resurface 263 STU 113 CITY 375 08/05/10 Exempt 56/44 465



Required Fields

Fiscal 

Year

Respon-

sible 

Agency Project Name Limits Length Project Description

Advance 

Construct

Federal 

Cost 

($1000s)

Federal 

Fund 

Source

State 

Cost 

($1000s)

State 

Fund 

Source

Local 

Cost 

($1000s)

Local 

Fund 

Source

Total 

Phase 

Cost 

($1000s)

MDOT 

Job No.

MPO/ 

Rural 

Action 

Date

Air 

Quality Comments

Total 

Project 

Cost 

($1000s)

FY 2011 - 2014 Draft - GVMC Grand Rapids
8/5/10

2014

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Turner Avenue
Ann Street to US-131 

SB Ramps
0.27 Rotomill/Resurface 118 STU 50 CITY 168 08/05/10 Exempt 55/45 215

2014

City of 

Grand 

Rapids

Wealthy Street
US-131 to Division 

Avenue
0.18 Reconstruct 788 STU 338 CITY 1,125 08/05/10 Exempt 30/70 2,650

2014
City of 

Grandville
Canal Avenue

Chicago Drive to 44th 

Street
1.5 Resurface 525 STU 225 CITY 750 08/05/10 Exempt 64/36 825

2014
City of 

Kentwood
Division Avenue

54th Street to 60th 

Street
0.75 Reconstruct and BLVD. AC 150 STU 1,530 CITY 1,680 08/05/10

Non-

exempt

ACC FY2015 

$1,071,335 Federal. 

7.5

1,806

2014
City of 

Kentwood

East Paris 

Avenue

44th Street to Barden 

Drive
0.66 Reconstruct 505 STU 217 CITY 722 08/05/10 Exempt 15 830

2014
City of 

Kentwood

Forest Hill 

Avenue
I-96 to North City Limit 1.47 Reconstruct ACC 461 STU 461 08/05/10 Exempt AC FY2011. 7.5 496

2014
City of 

Walker

Remembrance 

Road

Leonard Street to 

Walker Village Drive
0.48

2/3 resurface, 1/3 

reconstruct
595 STU 255 CITY 850 08/05/10 Exempt 20 1,020

2014
City of 

Wyoming
44th Street

Stafford Avenue to 

Division Avenue
0.6 Reconstruct 1,470 STU 630 CITY 2,100 08/05/10 Exempt 40 2,940

2014 GVMC
Planning 

Studies
Areawide 150 STU 38 OLF 188 08/05/10 Exempt 188

2014 ITP

Paratransit 

Vehicles 

Expansion

Regionwide
Paratransit Vehicles 

Expansion
151 5307 38 CTF 189 08/05/10 Exempt 189

2014 ITP
Replacement 

40' Buses
Regionwide Replacement 40' Buses 2,560 5307 640 CTF 3,200 08/05/10 Exempt 3,200

2014 ITP

Associated 

Capital 

Maintenance 

Items Regionwide

Associated Capital 

Maintenance Items
727 5307 182 CTF 908 08/05/10 Exempt 908

2014 ITP
Preventive 

Maintenance Regionwide
Preventive Maintenance 1,300 5307 325 CTF 1,625 08/05/10 Exempt 1,625

2014 ITP Bus Tire Lease Regionwide Bus Tire Lease 189 5307 47 CTF 236 08/05/10 Exempt 236

2014 ITP A&E
Regionwide

Architecture and 

Engineering
40 5307 10 CTF 50 08/05/10 Exempt 50

2014 ITP Shop Equipment
Regionwide

Shop Equipment 20 5307 5 CTF 25 08/05/10 Exempt 25

2014 ITP
Facility 

Equipment Regionwide
Facility Equipment 2,279 5307 570 CTF 2,848 08/05/10 Exempt 2,848

2014 ITP
Storage/Shelvin

g Units Regionwide
Storage/Shelving Units 16 5307 4 CTF 20 08/05/10 Exempt 20

2014 ITP

Office 

Furniture/Equip

ment Regionwide

Office 

Furniture/Equipment
40 5307 10 CTF 50 08/05/10 Exempt 50

2014 ITP
Computer 

Hardware Regionwide
Computer Hardware 61 5307 15 CTF 76 08/05/10 Exempt 76

2014 ITP
Computer 

Software Regionwide
Computer Software 41 5307 10 CTF 52 08/05/10 Exempt 52

2014 ITP Service Vehicles
Regionwide

Service Vehicles 74 5307 18 CTF 92 08/05/10 Exempt 92



Required Fields

Fiscal 

Year

Respon-

sible 

Agency Project Name Limits Length Project Description

Advance 

Construct

Federal 

Cost 

($1000s)

Federal 

Fund 

Source

State 

Cost 

($1000s)

State 

Fund 

Source

Local 

Cost 

($1000s)

Local 

Fund 

Source

Total 

Phase 

Cost 

($1000s)

MDOT 

Job No.

MPO/ 

Rural 

Action 

Date

Air 

Quality Comments

Total 

Project 

Cost 

($1000s)

FY 2011 - 2014 Draft - GVMC Grand Rapids
8/5/10

2014 ITP
Misc.. Support 

Equipment Regionwide
Miscellaneous support 

equipment
46 5307 12 CTF 58 08/05/10 Exempt 58

2014 ITP
Surveillance/Sec

urity Equipment 
Regionwide

Surveillance/Security 

Equipment 
76 5307 19 CTF 95 08/05/10 Exempt 95

2014 ITP
ADA Vehicle 

Equipment Regionwide
ADA Vehicle Equipment 210 5307 53 CTF 263 08/05/10 Exempt 263

2014 ITP

Rehab 

Adm/Maint 

Facility Regionwide

Rehabilitation Admin/Main 

Facility
357 5307 89 CTF 446 08/05/10 Exempt 446

2014 ITP
Passenger 

Shelters Regionwide
Passenger Shelters 80 5307 20 CTF 100 08/05/10 Exempt 100

2014 ITP

Intelligent 

Transportation 

System Regionwide

Intelligent Transportation 

System
1 5307 0 CTF 1 08/05/10 Exempt 1

2014 ITP
Micsc. 

Contingencies Regionwide
Micsc. Contingencies 80 5307 20 CTF 100 08/05/10 Exempt 100

2014 ITP
Project 

Administration Regionwide
Project Administration 80 5307 20 CTF 100 08/05/10 Exempt 100

2014 ITP
Capital Costs of 

Contracting Regionwide
Capital Costs of 

Contracting
588 5307 147 CTF 735 08/05/10 Exempt 735

2014 ITP Bus Stop Signs Regionwide Bus Stop Signs 10 5307 3 CTF 13 08/05/10 Exempt 13

2014 ITP
Information 

Displays Regionwide
Information Displays 10 5307 3 CTF 13 08/05/10 Exempt 13

2014 ITP Planning Funds
Regionwide

Planning Funds 546 5307 140 CTF 140 TRAL 826 08/05/10 Exempt 826

2014 KCRC 28th Street
Kraft Avenue to I-96 

Ramps
0.3 Resurface 280 STU 120 CNTY 400 08/05/10 Exempt 10 440

2014 KCRC 68th Street
Clyde Park Avenue to 

Burlingame Avenue
1 Resurface 350 STU 150 CNTY 500 08/05/10 Exempt 10 550

2014 KCRC 84th Street
Division Avenue to 

Kalamazoo Avenue
2 Resurface 560 STU 240 CNTY 800 08/05/10 Exempt 10 880

2014 KCRC
East Paris 

Avenue

Cascade Road to 

Kentwood City Limit
0.5 Resurface 350 STU 150 CNTY 500 08/05/10 Exempt 10 550

2014 KCRC Cascade Road
Segwun Avenue to the 

County line
1.75

Resurface and remove 

bridge
574 ST 143 CNTY 717 08/05/10 Exempt Rural. 10 789

2014 KCRC 4 Mile Road
Walker Avenue to Old 

Orchard Drive
1.90

Reconstruct and widen 2 

to 3 lanes
2,188 EDCF 547 CNTY 2,735 104907 08/05/10

Non-

exempt

Former FY2011 STPU 

project. 15
3,146

2014 MDOT US-131
I-196 North to Ann 

Street
1.442 Replace Freeway Lighting 819 NH 182 M 1,000 87397 08/05/10 Exempt 1,100

2014
Village of 

Kent City
Ball Creek Road

Kent City northwest 

Village limit to Rusco 

Street

1.22 Resurface 20 ST 20 VLG 40 08/05/10 Exempt Rural 48

2014 MDOT Countywide Grand River Watershed 0.01
Wetland Mitigation Bank 

Site
400 ST 100 M 500 107961 08/05/10 Exempt 1,277

2014 OCRC 44th Street
8th Avenue to Kenowa 

Avenue
1 Rotomill/Resurface 456 STU 195 CNTY 651 08/05/10 Exempt 70 651

2014 OCRC Bauer Road
24th Avenue to 

Cottonwood Drive
1.5 Resurface 370 STU 158 CNTY 528 08/05/10 Exempt 70 675


	GVMC 11-4-2010 Board Agenda
	10-2010 Board Minutes
	Members Absent:

	Transportation Lobby Day
	GVMCEXEC102110



